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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF M/S. VIBRANT GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of VIBRANT GLOBAL
CAPITAL LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to Us, and
based on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements of a subsidiary
as were audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companie
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principle:
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023 anc
their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated changes ir
equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis Of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sectiol
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further describes
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of ou
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAl, and w
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Ac
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us,
including those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

’?ey audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of Investment in securities :

The Company’s investments (other than
investment in Subsidiary are measured at
fair value at each reporting date and these
fair value measurements significantly
impact the Company’s results. Within the
Company’s investment portfolio, the
valuation of certain assets such as
unquoted preference share requires
significant judgement as a result of quoted
prices being unavailable and limited
liquidity in these markets.

Principal audit procedures :

We have assessed the Company’s process to
compute the fair value of various investments. For
quoted instruments we have independently
obtained market quotations and recalculated the
fair valuations. For the unquoted instruments, we
have obtained an understanding of the various
valuation methods used by management and
analysed the reasonableness of the principal
assumptions made for estimating the fair values
and various other data used while arriving at the fair
value measurement.

Transactions related to investment purchase
and sales and determination of Profit on Sale
of Investments :

Effort is needed to correctly account for
purchase/ sales transactions related to
investments and determine the profit /loss
there from and its classification from
taxation point of view.

Principal audit procedures :

Our audit approach was a combination of test of

internal controls and substantive procedure which

included the following :

e Evaluate the design of Internal Control over
acquisition, accretion and disposal of
investments, safeguarding of investments,
controls in respect of title of investments,
information flow related to investments.

e Selected a sample of contracts and tested the
supporting documents, terms of sale or
purchase (ex or cum dividend/interest), rights
issues, bonus issues.

e Verified whether the title of investments held
with depository/ custodian services are in the
name of the company.
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Reviewed the valuation and disclosure of
investments as required by Ind AS and
statutory requirements.

Verified the accuracy of determination of
profit/loss on sale of investments, period of
their holding and taxability of such profit/loss
in accordance with applicable law.

Derivative Income :

Effort is needed to correctly account for
purchase/ sales transactions related to
derivative instruments and determine the
profit /loss there from.

Principal audit procedures :

We  obtained an  understanding  of
management’s process and evaluated design
and tested operating effectiveness of controls
around existence and measurement of
derivative financial instruments.

Cross checking of data as well as derivative
transactions through data obtained from third
party verified, open position of derivative
instruments on cut-off dates and verified
income/loss on the cut-off date on these open
positions.

Considering the appropriateness of disclosures
in relation to financial risk management and
derivative financial instruments.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis
and Directors Report (the “Reports”), but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The Reports are expected to be made available
to us after the date of this Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

Management’s Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statement

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance




including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
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determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 2 subsidiaries whose
financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 8379.82 Lakhs as at 31st
March, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 19398.89 lakhs, net loss after tax of Rs. (579.66) lakhs and
total comprehensive loss of Rs. (572.79) lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2023 and cash
flows inflow/ (outflow) of Rs. 667.18 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements / financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO") issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us
for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion of the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over the financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the group to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

i There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on




behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

FOR AGRAWAL & KEDIA
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 100114W)
P :ff"&-'?*}‘?g%
(Y % ,
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EESI N ; (Ravi Agrawal)
A #\ 100114W -
N D & (Partner)
WIAGPUIAT  Membership No. 034492

(UDIN : 23034492BGXARH5506)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th May 2023



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph VII1(2) (f) of our Report of even date on the Account for the year ended on

31st March 2023 of M/S VIBRANT GLOBAL CAPITAL LTD.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (' the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the
year ended 31st March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
M/S VIBRANT GLOBAL CAPITAL LTD. (‘The Holding Company') and its subsidiary companies

incorporated in India as of date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies which are
companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over fina ncial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or frauds may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluations of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting which were
operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India.

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to two subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect

of this matter.

FOR AGRAWAL & KEDIA
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 100114W)

3 Ravi Agrawal)
' (Partner)
O Membership No. 034492

Treeie (UDIN : 23034492BGXARH5506)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29t May 2023



Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A |ASSETS
(1)|Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 673.78 58.37
(k) Bank Balance other than {a) above 4 100.00 100.00
(c) Receivables - -
{1} Trade Receivables 5 1,840.97 4,435.33
(I} Other Receivables - =
(d) Loans 6 1,738.88 1,483.81
(e) Investments 7 8,491.26 9,590.50
(f} Other Financial assets 8 130.80 76.24
Sub-total-Financial Assets| 12,975.69 15,744.25
|2)|Non-financial Assets
(a) Inventories 9 904.99 747.12
(b} Current tax assets (Net) 309,31 273.32
(c) Deferred tax Assets (Wet) 10 408.81 290.43
(d} Investment Property - 53.91
(e} Property, Plant and Equipment 11 2,252.84 2,301.87
(f} Capital work-in-progress 11 44,48 13051
(g) Goodwill an consolidation 12 165.73 165.73
{h} Other Intangible assets 11 115.07 115.26
(i} Other non-financial assets 13 459.32 279.17
Sub-total-Non-Financial Assets 4,660.55 4,357.32
Total Assets 17,636.24 20,101.57
g8 |UABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1){Financial Liabilities
{a) Derivative financial instruments
[b) Payables
(IfTrade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises x -
(if) tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 14 1,839.46 2,237.52
(It} Other Payables
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises < -
(i1} total outstanding dues of creditars other tharn micro
enterprises and small enterprises = L3
(c) Debt Securities
{d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities} 15 4,316.13 5,956.81
(e} Subordinated Liabilities - -
(f) Other financial liahilities 16 28.06 29.39
Sub-total-Financial Liabilities| 6,183.66 8,223.72
(2)|Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (Net} - 44,08
(b) Provisions for Gratuity 17 86.38 82.27
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (MNet) 394.60 -
(d) Other non-financial Habilities{to be specified) 18 16.42 22.27
Sub-total-Non-Financial Liabilities 497.40 148.63
(3)|EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 19 2,290.74 2,290.74
(b) Other Equity 20 8,535.59 9,308.75
Sub-total-Equity| 10,826.33 11,599.48
(4) Non -Controlling Interest 128.87 129.74
Total Liabilities and Equity] 17,636.24 20,101.57
Summary of significant accounting policies| 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Caonsalidated financial statements

s per our report of even date attached
Agrawal & Kedia
Chartered Accountants
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vibrant Global Capital Limited
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Company Secretary
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Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 21 234 85 951.41
Dividend Income 59.71 85.97
Rental Income 1.79 1.50
Sale of products 18,949.56 21,914.98
Net gain on fair value changes 24 1,044.81 4,792.32
Derivatives Income (596.33) 1176.01
Other income 22 3691 132.78
Total income 19,731.30 28,354.98
Expenses
Finance Costs 23 590.62 746.30
Cost of materials consumed 6,432.89 4,141.75
Purchases of stock-in-trade 10,752.61 15,241.03
Changes in Inventories 25 (224.22) 147.82
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 318.47 305.87
Depreciation 11 247.60 181.98
Other expenses 27 2,051.50 2,450.53
Total expenses 20,169.48 23,255.28
Profit Before Exceptional Iltems and Tax (438.18) 5,099.70
Profit from associates - i
Exceptional items - 10.85
Profit before tax (438.18) 5,110.65
Tax expense :
- Current tax 10 69.90 299.59
- Deferred tax 10 273.62 140.51
Total tax expense 343.53 440.10
Profit for the year (781.70) 4,670.55
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 10.27 12.73
Tax relating to these items (2.59) (3.64)
Total Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7.68 9.09
Profit for the period attributable to
Owners of the company (780.06) 4,634.82
Non controlling Interest (1.64) 35.72
Other comprehensive Income for the period attributable to
Owners of the company 6.91 9.91
Non controlling Interest 0.77 (0.82)
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to
Owners of the company (773.15) 4,644.73
Non controlling Interest (0.87) 3491
Total comprehensive income for the year (774.02) 4,679.64
Earnings per equity share
Basic and Diluted earnings per share [Nominal value of Rs.10] 28 (3.38) 20.28
summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Agrawal & Kedia Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Chartered Accountants
™m's Registration Number: lfi‘%;;iﬁlﬂ?&hw 2
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Ravi Agrawal F.R No I Vinod Garg Vaibhav Garg Jalpesh Darji
Partner «\ 100114w / * é"';: Managing Director cFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 34492 » o & (DIN : 00152665) |DIN : 02643884)
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Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Statement of Consolidated cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax (438.18) 5,110.65
Adjustments for :
Depreciation expense 247.60 181.98
Profit/Loss on sale of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 158.81 (4,330.58)
Interest income (234.85) (251.41)
Finance costs 590.62 746.30
Bad Debts written off 44.35 528.19
Unrealised Premium on preference shares (55.74) -
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 14.38 14.02
Loss on Strike off of Associate Company - (30.95)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (19.24) (35.71)
Impairment loss/Gain on trade receivables 193.97 38.19
Operating profit before working capital changes 501.73 1,970.67
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 2,356.04 (1,384.50)
(Increase) in inventories (157.87) 309.39
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (398.06) 727.39
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (excluding derivatives) (72.92) 34.77
(Increase) in other current assets 247 913.13
(Increase) in other non-current assets - 17.50
(Increase) in other non-financial assets (161.45) (2.09)
Decrease/(Increase) in other current liabilities (5.85) (25.52)
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) 54,42 {125.20)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non financial liabilities - -
Cash generated from operations 2,118.52 2,435.53
Income taxes paid 149.99 293.76
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,968.54 2,141.77
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) (39.21) (296.96)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment 752.20 |617.87)
Loans repaid/ {given) (257.88) 1,118.52
Interest income 234.85 251.41
Proceeds from sale of Property - 47,00
Net cash outflow from investing activities 689.95 502.10
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from/(Repayments of) Borrowings (1,452.46) (2,572.82)
Interest paid (590.62) (746.30)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (2,043.08) (3,319.11)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 615.41 (675.24)
Add:- Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 58,37 73361
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (note 4) 673.78 58.37

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached Eor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Agrawal & Kedia Vibrant Global Capital Limited
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Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 1: Corporate Information

Vibrant Global Capital Limited (‘the Group’) is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Group (‘NBFC’) as defined under Section 45:
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Group is principally engaged in lending and investing activities.

Note 2: Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act.The financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis. The Group uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties. i

2.1 Presentation of financial statements
The Group presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity .

The Group generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are offset and
reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingenton a future event. Similarly, the Group offsets incomes and expenses and reports
the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically unless they are material in nature.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and judgments. In view of
the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in the
subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates and
judgments are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

>Business model assessment

>Fair value of financial instruments

>Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

>lmpairment on financial assets

>Provisions and other contingent liabilities

>Provision for tax expenses

>Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

2.2 Principles of consolidation

(i) The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Group and all its subsidiaries (from
the date control is gained), being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the investor is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly
affect the entity returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Group.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with
accounting policies of the Parent Group.

The Parent Group holds the entire shareholding in its subsidiaries and there are no contractual arrangements which rebute the
control of the Parent Group over its subsidiaries.

The financial statements of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Intragroup balances
and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the

consolidated financial statements.




The financial statements of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Intragroup balances
and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

(i) The Consolidated financial statements include results of the subsidiaries and associates of Parent Group,consolidated in
accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements.

Name of the Company Country of Proportion of ownership Consolidated as
incorporation as at reporting date

Vibrant Global Trading Private Limited INDIA 99.46% Subsidiary

Vibrant Global Salt Private Limited INDIA 87.88% Subsidiary

Note 3: Summary of significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Income

(i) Interest income
The Group recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). EIR is calculated by considering all costs and
incomes attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

The Group recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets, In case of credit-impaired financial assets, the Group recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of
impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired , the Group reverts to calculating
interest income on a gross basis. Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non
payment of contractual cashflows is recognised on realisation. Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognised at the contractual rate of interest.

(i) Dividend income
Dividend income on equity shares is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(iii) Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with

customers are provided in disclosures.
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.



i. Sale of products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on shipment or delivery. The normal credit term is 30-60 days from shipment or delivery as the case may be. The
Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of good or rendering of service, the Company considers the effects of variable
consideration and provisional pricing, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

a. Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The volume
rebates give rise to variable consideration.

» Volume rebates and discounts

The products are often sold with volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a specific time period, normally 3-12 months.
Revenue from these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts using either the expected value method or an
assessment of the most likely amount. Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sales
made until the end of the reporting period. The estimated volume discount is revised at each reporting date.

b. Significant financing component

In many cases, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the
Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when
the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Hence, there is no financing component which needs to be separated.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration thatis conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Refer to accounting policies
of financial assets- Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.



(iv) Other revenue from operations
The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which Ind AS 109
‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers’. The Group identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the
contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises
revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

(a) Net gain on fair value changes
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FvOCI), as applicable. The Group recognises gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets
measured as FVTPL and realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

(b) Sale of services
The Group, on de-recognition of financial assets where a right to service the derecognised financial assets for a fee
is retained, recognises the fair value of future service fee income over service obligations cost on net basis as service fee
income in the statement of profit or loss and, correspondingly creates a service asset in Balance Sheet. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of service assets is recognised as service income and any decrease is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it occurs. The embedded interest component in the service asset is recognised as interest income in line with

Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’.

(c) Recoveries of financial assets written off
The Group recognises income on recoveries of financial assets written off on realisation or when the right to
receive the same without any uncertainties of recovery is established.

(d) Taxes
Incomes are recognised net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, wherever applicable.

3.2 Expenditure

(i) Finance costs
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR

(ii) Fees and commission expenses
Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/incentive
incurred on value added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees payable for management of portfolio
etc., are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss onan accrual basis.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.



3.4 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables, loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt
securities and other borrowings, preferential and equity capital etc. are some examples of financial instruments.

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets include cash, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from another entity. Few examples of financial assets are loan receivables, investment in equity and debt
instruments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:
(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI

(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL

(d) Equity instruments designated at FVOCI.

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost
The Group measures its financial assets at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(i) The asset is held within a business model of collecting contractual cash flows; and
(i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Sole Payments of
Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the nature of portfolio and
the period for which the interest rate is set.

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument by instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Group’s original
expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated financial assets going forward.

The business model of the Group for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and collect
contractual cash flows. However, considering the economic viability of carrying the delinquent portfolios in the books of the
Group, it may sell these portfolios to banks and/or asset reconstruction companies. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost on effective interest rate (EIR).

(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI
The Group subsequently classifies its financial assets as FVOCI, only if both of the following criteria are met:
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of
Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.




Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at fair value with such changes being
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The interest income on these assets is recognised in profit or loss. The ECL
calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in subsequent notes in this section.

Debt instruments such as long term investments in Government securities to meet regulatory liquid asset requirement of the
Group’s deposit program and mortgage loans portfolio where the Group periodically resorts to partially selling the loans by way
of assignment to willing buyers are classified as FVOCI.

On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL

The Company classifies financial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held for trading assets are recorded
and measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Interest and dividend incomes are recorded in interest income and dividend
income, respectively according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the same has been established. Gain
and losses on changes in fair value of debt instruments are recognised on net basis through profit or loss.

The Company’s investments into mutual funds and Government securities (trading portfolio) for trading and short term cash
flow management have been classified under this category

(d) Equity investments designated under FVOCI

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ are measured at fair value. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable. The Group currently doesn’t have any equity investments which are measured at FVOCI.

All fair value changes of the equity instruments, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCl and not available for reclassification
to profit or loss, even on sale of investments. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets:
The Group derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) when:

(i) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

(i) The Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under an assignment arrangement and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Once the asset is derecognised, the Group does not have any continuing
involvement in the same.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:
(i) the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
(i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and when the financial instrument is credit impaired. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12 month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default eventsona financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
ectimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical

experience and forward-looking information.



The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade and other receivables and lease receivables. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. Lifetime ECL
represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For
debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCl and carrying amount of the financial asset is not reduced in the
balance sheet

Write offs:

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospect of further recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor/ borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets to

another entity, or a contract that may or will be settled in the entities own equity instruments. Few examples of financial
liabilities are trade payables, debt securities and other borrowings and subordinated debts.

Initial measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables,debt securities and other

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR. Any gains or losses
arising on derecognition of liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet only if there is an
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts with an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.5 Investment in associates
Investment in associates is recognised at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period. Cost of
investment represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investment may be
impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if any
i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost.



3.6 Taxes

(i) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in other equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in OCl or in other equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
(a) Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis for all tangible assets on written down value method over the useful life of

assets.

(b) Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment except where such
assessment suggests a life significantly different from those prescribed by Schedule Il - Part C of the Companies Act, 2013
where the useful life is as assessed and certified by a technical expert.

(c) Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with reference to
the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be.



(d) Tangible assets which are depreciated over a useful life that is different than those indicated in Schedule Il are as under

Nature of assets Useful life as per Schedule II' Useful life adopted by the Group

Office Building 60 Years 60 Years

Plant and Machinery 15 Years 15-20 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years 8 Years

Office equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Computer & Laptop 3 Years 3 Years

Lab equipment 10 Years 10 Years

(f) Assets having unit value up to Rs 5,000 is depreciated fully in the financial year of purchase of asset.

(g) An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

(h) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.8 Intangible assets and amortisation thereof

Intangible assets, representing softwares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment. The intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of
five years, which is the Management’s estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the carrying value of relevant asset
is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

3.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. The Group also discloses present obligations for which a reliable estimate cannot be
made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

3.11 Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Gratuity
The Company'’s liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. Past services are recognised at the earlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recognition
of related restructuring costs/ termination benefits.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss.



Remeasurement gains/losses -

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding interest income
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other Comprehensive Income (ocl)
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in the subsequent period.

Remeasurement gains or losses on long-term compensated absences that are classified as other long-term benefits are
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Provident fund

Company’s contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and ESIC is recognised in the Statement of profit and
loss

(iii) Compensated absences
The Company provides for the encashment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to
accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment. The liability is provided based on the number of
days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation.

3.12 Fair value measurement
The Group measures its qualifying financial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous
accessible market as applicable.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level Il and Level Il based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole.

For assets and liabilities that are fair valued in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy.

3.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s
earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, sub-division of shares etc. that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders is divided by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.14 Segment

(i) Identification of segment
Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision

Maker (CODM) of the Group.



(ii) Segment accounting policies

The Board of Directors and Managing directors of the Holding Company have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker

(CODM) as defined under Ind AS 108, CODM reviews overall financial information of the Company together for performance
evaluation and allocation of resources and does not review any discrete information to evaluate performance of any individual
product or geography.

3.15 Leases

Measurement of Lease Liability

At the time of initial recognition, the Group measures lease liability as present value of all lease payments discounted
using the Group's incremental cost of borrowing and directly attributable costs. Subsequently, the lease liability is—

(i) increased by interest on lease liability;

(ii) reduced by lease payments made; and

(iii) remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications specified in Ind AS 116 'Leases', or to reflect revised
fixed lease payments.

Measurement of Right-of-use assets

At the time of initial recognition, the Group measures 'Right-of-use assets' as present value of all lease payments discounted
using the Group’s incremental cost of borrowing w.r.t said lease contract, Subsequently, 'Right-of-use assets' is measured using
cost model i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability specified in Ind AS 116 'Leases', Depreciation on 'Right-of-use assets' is provided on
straight line basis over the lease period.

The exception permitted in Ind AS 116 for low value assets and short term leases has been adopted by Group.

3.16 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and e amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess
of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the
gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. Where goodwill
has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.



Vibrant Global Capital Limited(Consolidated)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

(Al inR in lakhs unl

otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount
As at April 1, 2021 2,290,74
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2022 2,290.74
Changes in equity share capital =
As at March 31, 2023 2,290.74
B. Other equity
Particulars Retained earnings| Statutory Reserve| General Reserve | Share premium | Capital Reserve Total other equity
Balance at March 31, 2021 853.36 584.19 3.33 1,526.80 1,693.95 4,661.62
Profit for the year March-22 4,624.82 - - - 4,634.82
Other comprehensive income for the year March-22 9.91 - - - = 9,91
Effect due to acquisition of subsidiary shares 2.40 2.40
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (907.05) 907.05 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,740.08 907.05 - - - 4,647,13
Balance at March 31, 2022 4,593.44 1,491.24 3.33 1,526.80 1,693.95 9,308.75
Profit for the year March-23 (780.06) - - - - (780.06)
Other comprehensive incame for the year March-23 6.91 - - - - 6.91
Effect due to acquisition of subsidiary shares - -
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (773.15) - - - - (773.15)
Balance at March 31, 2023 3,820.28 1,491.24 3.33 1,526.80 1,693.95 8,535.59

As per our report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
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Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to Ci lid ial St
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Ei

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents :-

for the year ended 31st March 2023

Within 12 Months | AT 12 | o 3g g5 | Within12 T After 12 March
Months M " " " 31,2022
Cash on hand 4.11 4.11 6.66 L 6.66
Cheques in hand = R 5 : g
Balances with banks
in current accounts 669.67 669.67 51.71 51,71
Deposits with Bank - 0.01 001
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks with original maturity of more 100.00 100,00 100.00 - 100.00
than three months but less than 12 months
773.78 - 773.78 158.37 - 158.37
Note 5: Trade receivables ;-
g After 12 Within 12 After 12 March
Within 12 Months March 023
: Months 312 Months Months | 31,2022
Considered good - unsecured
Trade recelvables 2,910.82 2,910.82 531121 5311.21
Trade receivables_Related Party % - 2 N
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {1,069.85) {1,069.85) (875.87) (875.87)
1,840.97 - 1,840.97 4,435.33 - 4,435.33
Break-up of security details
After 12 Within 12 After 12 March
Within 12 Month h 31,202
" | months | Merd 2| months Months | 31,2022
Secured, considered good - - < % = =
Unsecured, considered good 1,840.97 - 1,840.97 443533 - 4,435.33
Doubtful 1,069.85 - 1,069.85 875.87 - 875.87
2,910.82 - 2,910.82 5,311.21 - 5,311.21
Allowance for doubtful debts (1,069.85) - (1,069.85) (875.87) - (875.87)
1,840.97 - 1,840.97 4,435.33 - 4,435.33
Ageing of Trade Receivables:-
31-03-2023
PARTICULARS Less than 6 months | 6 months - | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than | Total
1 year 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade recelvables — considered good 1,449.65 46.32 307.02 1.71 36.28 1,840.97
(if) Undisputed Trade Recelvables which are having significs - - - - - -
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 10.26 5.15 42.54 0,13 500.49 958.63
(iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables considered good - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables which are having - - - - =
significant credit risk - -
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 111.22 111.22
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 1,459.91 51.46 349.55 1.90 1,047.99 2,910.82
UNBILLED DUES (B} .
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES (A + B) 1,459.91 51.46 349.55 1.90 1,047.99 2,910.82
31-03-2022
PARTICULARS Less than 6 months | 6 months - | 1-2 years 2-3 years Meore than | Total
1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 3,340.76 762,53 59.97 24593 45.20 4,454.39
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables which are having significq - - - - - -
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 39.03 9.15 565,51 88.59 702.28
{lv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - = =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables which are having
significant credit risk s # = - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - 154.54 154.54
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 3,340.76 801.56 69.12 811.44 288.33 5,311.21
UNBILLED DUES (B) %
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES (A + B) 3,340.76 801.56 69.12 811.44 288.33 5,311.21




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Loans

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months o
(A) At Amortised Cost
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Others 1,246.93 439.89 1,686.81 - 49.18 49,18
Loans to employees 3.70 - 3.70 2.00 - 2.00
Security Deposits 48.37 48.37 992.74 435.89 1,432.63
1,250.63 488.26 1,738.88 994.74 489.07 1,483.81
Notes:

1. Loans are non derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the group. The carrying value may be
affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Note 8: Other financial assets

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months
Interest accrued 3.41 - 3.41 0.22 . 0.22
EMD 69.38 - 69.38 14.90 - 14.90
Security Deposits - 58.01 58.01 - 58.01 58.01
Interest receivable from others . - - 3.11 E 3.11
72.79 58.01 130.80 18.23 58.01 76.24




Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to T il
{All amounts in Rupess in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Investments

fer the year ended 31st March 2023

Investments March 31,2023 March 31,2022
No. of shares Amortised Cast At Fair Value Sub - total Others Total Cost At Fair Value Sub - total Others | Total Cost
Face value | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 Through | Through profit| Designated at Cost Through | Through profit] Designated at Fair|
ather or loss. Fair value other or loss value through
through prafit 1p profit or loss
ive income or loss e income
1 2 3 4] 5=2+3 +4 T=ls546 i 11| 12=9+10+11 13| 14=8412+13
Unguoted Investments in equity shares :
Others :-
NKGSE Co.-Op. Bant Ltd. {Qty. 101 Shares) - - D01 0.01 dbi
d in Share -
Preference Shares of (rest Steel B Power Put. Ltd - 1,277 - - 156,39 156.39
Tristar car Put. Ltd. 100 50,00,000 s0,00,000 . 500,00 00 o i o soo.oa 5156_39
15w Steel Ltd 1o 10 10 - - H E . B . e
| L ga=: Provisian for diminution in the Valkie of Investments (345.00) 1345.00) (345.00) -3 (501.35) dSlJl-BB} :501-39}
in Alternate Fund -
Aequitas Equity Schame CLSA 100 3,00,000 3,00,000 - 24459 - 444,59 444,55 374.08 374.08 S
| Guoted Investment in Equity instruments of Others -
Apar industries Lt 10 32,020 = 80207 ao2.07 802,07 - 34733 347.33 34733
Cosme First Lid, 1o 47,763 66,875 28051 28051 18051 1.159.14 i 1,15%.14 1,159.14
Deepak Fertilisers 10 28,164 A0,887 - 154 54 - 15454 154.54 22938 22938 '229-33
Everest kanko Cylinde: Lid 2 50,000 50,000 - - 45.05 - 45.05 45.05 % 113.18 11318 +
Gujarat Ambuja Expors Ltd. 1 3,80,078 2,96,358 - - 883.11 = 88311 883.11 = 77123 ?71.-23 T:Jr 3.;8
HIL Ltd. 0 3,268 3,581 - % TEA48 78.48 - 7848 o 142.31 14231 14;3?
Indian Hume Pipe Comparny Ltd. 2 - 15,005 = = + . 2 = 2677 28,77 25.7
ISGEC Heavy Englnesrng Ltd. 1 59,445 61,307 - - 259.36 25936 259.35 = 31469 31468 31&‘ ]
Sindsal Saw Ltd. 2 4,07,950 1,40,000 - - 595.20 - 595.20 595.20 126.14 126 14 uﬁfi
Jindal Stainless Ltd 2 3,22,095 4,37,356 - 933.43 93343 2 93343 885.86 /E5.86 8
i Paper Ltd 10 85,000 1,00,000 - 32445 = 324,45 32445 = 0385 i 303:86
fazithan Alloys Ltd, 10 62,822 63,433 = = 502.58 = 502.58 502.58 - B42.17 842.17 a1 -
Kaveri Seed CompanyLtd 2 - 19,750 - - i B ~ n Sl 1ualn3 2.17
Maharashtra Seamles: Ltd. 5 34,054 18,658 - - 121.76 - 121.76 = 12176 102.91 = 102-91 A
Palyplex Corparation (td. 10 5,062 14,105 . - 57.84 - 57.84 57.84 34303 uz-uz 102.51
Power Mach projects td, 10 20,203 23,441 = 498.59 = 498.99 A493.99 19591 195:51 :;:.03
Rain Industries L1, 2 - 2,42,939 = 1 - = - 47130 471.30 «1?1':;
Sandur Maganese & bion Ores L 10 - 15,100 - - - - o = < 532.80 532.80 533‘30
Sarda Energy & Minerils 10 34,298 35,000 366.15 366.15 - 366.15 = 396.43 196,43 395;
Sanghvi Movers Lid, 2 95,183 78,010 335.19 335.13 - 33513 « 143.38 S i 3
Savita Oil Technologies Ltd. 2 19,525 4,905 = 46.28 - 4628 46.28 = 5155 ise o
Shree Pushkr Chemicas 10 50,000 50,000 = 74.10 + 74.10 74,10 = 14043 A 5155
Technocraft Industries Lid, 10 43,304 44,919 - 526.08 - 526.08 526.08 . 442,90 . «zlso 140.13
Universal Cables Ltd, 10 63,515 67,683 - 21.76 - 2776 - 227.76 L st 99-57 442,90
Vindhys Telelink 10 44,593 45,991 2 - 77675 - 77875 . 77875 = o302 ol 1:: 57
Visaka Industries Lid, 10 % 10,000 : 3 i R R [ o ) 58:69 Sg_m
VL5, T. Tillers Tractors 10 = 2,550 T = ~ ~ B i P i az_g:
Jindal Stainless Hisar itd F - 47,618 = ¥ ” = = x 185.40 185,40 135‘40
TOTAL - - 8,491.26 - 8,491.26 - 8,491.26 . 9,590.50 2 9,590.50 i
Grass (4] - - B,491.26 - 8,491.26 - 8,491.26 = 9,590.50 - 9,590.50 8,590.50
(i} Investments cutsid: India Fy - - - - - - = . F
{1 Investments in inda 3 8,491.26 - B,391.26 - 8,491.26 9,530.50 B 5 _590._5,3 g 590-50
TOTAL (8] - - 8,491.26 8,49126 - 8,491.26 s 9,530.50 : 3.590.50 Py




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Inventories

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
After 12 Within 12 After 12

sl | Total

Within 12 Months Sonihs Tota Months Miiitis ota
Raw material 592.45 - 592.45 658.80 - 658.80
Finished Goods 306.25 - 306.25 74.06 - 74.06
Inventories of stock in trade 6.29 - 6.29 14.27 - 14.27
904.99 - 904.99 747.12 - 747.12




Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to C lid ial 5t for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 10: Tax expenses
The major components of tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are :

Statement of profit and loss:

Profit and loss section

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 0.04 90.70
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 69.86 208.89
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 273.63 140.51
Tax exj reported in the of profit and loss 343,53 440.10
OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year :
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Met (loss)/gain on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (2.59) {3.64)
I tax charged to OCI (2.59) (3.64)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Accounting profit before tax (422.18) 5,015.85
Enacted income tax rate in india 0.26 0,26|
Computed expected tax expense - 1,350.24
Effect of :
Business Loss 382.24 (221.36)
Depreciation and amortisation (49.59) {59.36)
|ncome set off with previous year's losses - (156.99)
LTCG taxed at special rates - |616.41)
Gratuity Provision (3.14} (31.70)
ECL Provision (45.14) -
Financial instruments measured at EIR_Interest (10.26) (50.01)
Impairment an financial instruments (5.13) -
MAT Credit 21.35 -
Impairment of assets £ 9.65
Others (16.67) 0.74
Tax In respect on earlier years 69.86 215.30
Total income tax expense 343,53 440.10 |
Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following :
Balance sheet
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Impairment on financial instruments 277.84 227.57
Unrealised net gain on fair value changes {350.86) (341.16)
Assessed Business Loss 232,15 614.39
Gratuity Provision 21.96 20.90
Interest on Preference share - (15.99)
Unrealised gain on Preference share (46.19) {16.17)
MAT Credit - 21.35
Depreciation and amortisation (97.89) (147.48)
Financial instruments measured at EIR {22.80) (72.98)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 14,21 290,43
Statement of profit and loss
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
ECL Praovision 50.26 (9.65)
Depreciation and amortisation 49.59 59.36
Financial instruments measured at EIR_Interest 50.18 49.60
Unrealised net gain on fair value changes (9.69) (450.58)
Interest on preference share (14.03) (12.89)
MAT Credit (21.35) -
Business Loss (382.24) 221.36
Provision on Gratuity 1.07 (1.36)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (276.22) (144.15)
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities/Assets (net):
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening balance as of April 1 250.43 434.58
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in profit ar loss (273.63) (140.51)
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in ocl [2.59) (3.64)
Closing balance as at March 31 14.21 290.43

The Campany offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only ifi
the defarred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

t has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liablities and




Vibrant Globa! Capital Limited
Notes to C lidated Financial for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 11 : Property, plant and equipment

Particulars P Furniture and Electn"cal Vehicles Factory Building Non Factory Office Laboratory Plant and Intangible
Fixture | Installations ildi Juif s| Equip Machinery Computers s Total

Year ended March 31, 2022

Gross carrying value

Carrying value as at April 1, 2021 282.95 194.63 63.96 262.70 979,74 136.26 3136 436 1,800.10 1135 117.35 3984 7
Additions 5 012 - 164.94 . - 110 011 018 : . e
Disposal - - - 126.75 > : ! B . Letiics
Closing gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022 282,95 194.74 63.96 300.89 979.74 136.26 32.46 4.47 1,900.28 11.35 11?-35 4, ;lz'i::

A ,024,

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2021 - 171.86 54.20 22279 183.97 33.56 28.90 3.11 829.95 10.11 233 1,540
Depreciation charge during the year - 6.43 470 13.47 31.06 4.32 0.79 0.27 120.28 053 0-15 '13 .80
Disposals . = - 115.46 - > - : . ) ¥ 1.98
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 202, - 178.29 58.90 120.81 215.02 37.88 29.69 338 950.23 10.64 2_48 1 ;;:;:
Net carrying value esat March 31,2022 282.95 16.45 5.06 180.08 764.71 98.38 277 1.09 950.05 0.71 114.87 2,417.13
Year ended March 31, 2023

Gross carrying valug

Carrying value as atApril 1, 2022 282.95 194.74 63.96 300,89 979.74 136.26 3245 4.47 1,900.28 11.35 117.35 4,024.45
Additions - 37.80 12.96 4.20 14674 0.45 '202-15
Disposals - 59,72 =
Closing gross carrying value as at Mar 31, 2023 282.95 194.74 63.96 278.97 992.70 136.26 36.66 2.47 2,047.02 11,_79 11?_35 4 x::.;;

A ,166.

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation as at April 1, 2022 - 178.29 58,90 120.81 215.02 37.88 29.69 3.38 950.23 10.64 2.48 1607
Deprediation charge during the period 5.11 165 76.71 3126 43 195 6523 S dn 2 i ,24 .33
Disposals 55.07 L - 7.60
Closing accumulated depreciation as at Mar 31, 2023 - 183.40 60.55 141.56 246.29 42.20 30.94 3.62 1,077.12 10.71 2,59 1;;::::
Net carrying value as at Mar 31, 2023 282.95 11.34 3.41 137.41 746.41 94.07 5.72 0.86 969.90 1.08 114.76 2,367.91
Capital-work-in pregress, ageing schedule for FY 2022-23

cwip Amount of CWIP
Less Than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Year years

Plant and Machinery WIP 44.48 L o z 44.48

Factory Building WIP - = = = %

Projects Temporariy Suspended 5 = = : E

Total 44.48 - - - 44.48

Capital-work-in progress, ageing schedule for FY 2021-22

cwip Amount of CWIP
Less Than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Year years

Plant and Machinery WIP 125.82 - - k 125.82

Factory Building WIP 4.69 = - E 4.69

Projects Temporarity Suspended 2 = = L 3

Total 130.51 - - - 130.51




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 : Goodwill on consolidation

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Within 12
After 12 Months Total Within 12 Months| After 12 Months Total

Months
Opening gross carrying amount = 165.73 165.73 = 74.16 74.16
Additions - - - - 91.57 91.57
Disposals/Adjustment - - - - * -

- 165.73 165.73 - 165.73 165.73

Note : On June 02, 2021, Vibrant Global Capital Limited acquired 38000 (2.05%) additional equity shares of Vibrant Global Trading Private Limited
(Subsidiary) from Non Controlling shareholders for a total cash consideration of Rs. 1,33,00,000/-. Intrinsic value of the asset acquired was of
Rs.41,43,377.44/- .The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired has been attributed to goodwill.

Note 13: Other Non-Financial assets

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Within 12

After 12 Months Total Within 12 Months| After 12 Months Total
Months

Capital advances - 169.48 169.48 - 169.48 169.48

Advances other than capital advances
Prepayments 10.09 - 10.09 20.80 - 20.80
Advance to Staff 3.80 - 3.80 3.00 - 3.00
Advances to suppliers 200.94 - 200.94 29.65 s 29.65
Balances with Revenue Authorities 73.93 - 73.93 54.80 = 54.80
Other Receivable 0.02 - 0.02 0.19 - 0.19
Insuarance 1.07 - 1.07 1.25 - 1.25
289.85 169.48 459.32 109.70 169.48 279.17




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Trade payables

Within 12

Within 12

Months After 12 Months| March 31,2023 Months After 12 Months | March 31,2022
Trade payables
Total oultstanding dHes of creditors other 1,839.46 - 1,839.46 2,237.52 - 2,237.52
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
1,839.46 - 1,839.46 2,237.52 - 2,237.52
Disclosure:- 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end (since paid) - .
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount as at the year end -
Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appointed day, duriﬁg the year - -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than section 16) - -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (section 16) - *
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act - "
Ageing of Trade Payables:-
31.03.2022
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
(i) MSME 5 N
(ii) Others 1,491.22 314,58 6.02 27.64 1,839.46
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME = 5
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - -
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 1,491.22 314.58 6.02 27.64 1,839.46
UNBILLED DUES (B) =
TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES (A + B) 1,491.22 314.58 6.02 27.64 1,839.46
31.03.2021
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
(i) MSME 702.94 2 - 702,94
(i) Others 1,507.53 0.16 19.06 - 1,526.75
{iii) Disputed dues- MSME - 0.30 - 0.30
{iv) Disputed dues- Others 7.39 0.14 7.53
TOTAL BILLED AND DUE (A) 2,210.47 7.55 19.50 - 2,237.52
UNBILLED DUES (B) -
TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES (A + B) 2,210.47 7.55 19.50 - 2,237.52
Note 15: Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
i Within 12
Within A2 After 12 Months| March 31,2023 After 12 Months | March 31,2022
Months Months
At Amortised Cost
Secured in India
Indian Rupee working capital loan 1,051.99 1,051.99 1,015.53 14,22 1,029.74
Loans from Financial Institutions - # - 188.17 - 188.17
Loans from NBFC 776.36 1,300.00 2,076.36
Term loan from Banks 27.73 303.78 331.51 - 1,984.77 1,984.77
Vehicle loan from Banks - 111.35 111.35 - 150.29 150.29
Un-Secured in india -
Loans from others 556.90 556.90 296.00 1,518.08 1,814.08
Loans from related parties 188.02 188.02 -
Loan from director - 20.00 769.76 789.76
|
|
1,856.09 2,460.04 4,316.13 1,519.70 4,437.12 5,956.81
Current maturities of non-current 337.32 (227.32) . 1,096.99 (1,096.99) =
borrowings
2,083.41 2,232.73 4,316.13 2,616.69 3,340.13 5,956.81




Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Borrowings (continued...)

Period r::;:::::m Inf:r‘;::::te March 31,2023 |  March 31,2022
Non-Current Borrowings
Secured Loan
Term Loan (1.30 Cr ) ** 2 Years Loans are secured and repayable in 2 Years 7.25%
after Monotoriam Period of Rs 684211 per = 13.45
Maonth
TERM LOAN SBI- 12 CR **+ 2Yrs 24 Monthly Installment of - 10.15% 2 850.00
3500000 #
(Upto 31.03.22)
65000004
(Upto 31.03.23)
35000004
(Last Installment)
Term Loan (3.19 Cr)** 3 Years Loans are secured and repayable in 3 Years 9.50%
(after Monotoriam Period of 12 months) of Rs 141.45 249,69
886112/- p.m.
State Bank of India (ECLGS 20% Govt. Schmes) 4Yrs 48 Monthly Installment of Rs 1516667/- 7.40% < 442 65
State Bank of India (GECL Loan-New) ** 5Y¥rs 24 months moratorium 9.25% 154.04 154.97
35 monthly installment of 441700
1 monthly installment of 427000
Bajaj Housing Finance Ltd. **** 10Yrs 120 Monthly Installments of Rs.1700014/- 9.75% 1,300.00 -
Toyota Financial Services* 5Yrs 60 Manthly [nstallments of Rs.30233/- 8.65% - 0.29
Axis Bank Car Loan * 5Yrs 60 Monthly Installments of Rs.265727/- 6.75% 111.35 135.00
State Bank of India * 7Yrs 84 Monthly Installment of Rs 63648/~ B.65% - 15.00
State Bank of India (GECL Loan-New) *** 5Y¥rs 24 months moratorium 9.25% - 274.00
35 monthly installment of 761000
1 monthly installment of 765000
Unsecured Loan
Loan from Bank 4¥rs Loan is unsecured and it is to be repaid with 9.25% 8.29 14.22
36 Equated monthly installments of Rs.57,871/
after a moratorium of 12 month




Unsecured loans from related party 5¥rs Loan is unsecured and Entire amount to be Interest free 138.02 275.76
repaid after 5 years
Unsecured loans from others 5¥rs Loan is unsecured and Entire amount to be Interest free 556.90 1,518.08
repaid after 5 years
Unsecured loans from Directors S¥rs Loan is unsecured and Entire amount to be Interest free - 494 01
repaid after 5 years
2,460.04 4,437.11
Current Borrowings
Secured
Cash credit facility * Renewal Every Year 10.10% 1,051.99 922.69
Loan from Bank A On demand Renewal Every Year 6.35% p.a. (1% 27.73 92.83
more than FD
Interest rate
Loan from Financial Institution
- Sharekhan BNP Paribas Financial Services Private Limited 12 Month - 8.00% 776.36 188.17
AAA
Unsecured
Unsecured loans from others 5 ¥rs Entire Loan is unsecured Interest free - 296.00
Unsecured loans from related party 5 ¥rs Entire Loan is unsecured Interest free - 20.00
Loan from Director 5¥rs Entire Loan is unsecured Interest free - =
1,856.09 1,519.70
GRAND TOTAL 4,316.13 5,956.81
Security
Non Current

* Secured by hypothecation of Motor car.

** Secured Against Stock and Receivables and Plant and assets procured out of Bank finance and Collateral Security by way of charge on Factory Land & Building
*** Secured by equitable mortagage of commercial block situated in peninsula buisness park
#*** Secured by Flat at Rameshwaram Apt-1101/1102 in the name of Director & Stock & Book Debts

Current

A Hypothecztion of Raw Material , WIP, Finished Goods, Book Debts, other receivables of the Company and Personal Guarantee of Directors.
An Overdraft facility is secured against lien of Fixed Deposit amounting to Rs. 1 crore.

AnM Loan is secured Investment in shares by the company
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Note 16: Other Financial Liabilities
e e e

Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
h
Months Months haarch 31,2043 Months Months Mioweh <1 2028
Statutory tax payables 18.88 18.88 19.21 - 18,21
Interest Payable to Related Party 0.06 - 0.06
Liabilities towards employee benefits 9.12 - 9.12 10.17 - 10.17
28.06 - 28.06 29.39 - 29.39
Note 17: Provision for Gratuity
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
h 31,2022
Months Months Miaieh 21,2028 Months Months i
Provision for Gratuity 21.95 64.43 86.38 2.92 79.35 82.27
21.95 64.43 86.38 2.92 79.35 82.27
Note 18: Other Non_financial liabilities
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
March 31,2022
Months Months Miaigh 31,2023 Months Months
Others 16.42 - 16.42 22.27 - 22.27
16.42 | 16.42 22.27 . 22.27
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Note 19: Equity share capital

Number of Shares Amount
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Authorised equity share capital 2,72,50,000 2,52,50,000 2,725.00 2,525.00
2,52,50,000 Equity Share of Rs, 10/- each
2,72,50,000 2,52,50,000 2,725.00 2,525.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid share capital 2,29,07,380 2,29,07,380 2,290.74 2,290.74
2,29,07,380 (2,29,07,380) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each
2,29,07,380 2,29,07,380 2,290.74 2,290.74
(a) Movements in equity share capital
Number of Shares Amount
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 2,29,07,380 2,29,07,380 2,290.74 2,290.74
Add: Shares sold by Subsidiary - - - -
Number of Shares at the end of the year l 2,29,07,380 2,29,07,380 2,290.74 2,290.74

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Fach shareholder is eligible for one vote per share

held.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder % holding No of shares
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Vaibhav Vinod Garg 36.16%) 36.11% 82,82,212 82,72,699
Siddhartha Bhaiya 22.64%) 22.64% 51,86,000 51,86,000
Vinod Garg 35.08% 35.04% 80,36,500 80,25,900

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding benficial interest, the above shareholding represents the legal ownership of shares.

(d) Shareholding of Promoters

31 March 2023

Promoters name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during
the year
Vaibhav Vinod Garg 82,82,212 36.11%| 0.04%
Vinod Garg 80,36,900 35.08% 0.00%
TOTAL 1,63,19,112
31 March 2022
Promoters name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during
the year
Vaibhav Vinod Garg 82,72,699 36.11%| 0.00%
Vinod Garg 80,36,900 35.08% 0.05%
TOTAL 1,63,09,599
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Note 20:- Other equity

As at ]

l-tartlculars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
(i) Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,526.80 1,526.80

No Adjustment - o

Balance at the end of the year 1,526.80 1,526.80
(ii) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,593.44 853.36

Profit during the year (773.15) 4,644.73

Effect due to acquisition of subsidiary shares E 2.40

Transfer to Statutory Reserve - (907.05)
Balance at the end of the year 3,820.28 4,593.44
(iii) Reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,491.24 584.19
Mavement during the year - 907.05
Balance at the end of the year 1,491.24 1,491.24
(iv) General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 333 3.33
Balance at the end of the year 3.33 3.33
(v) Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,693.95 1,693.95

Capital Reserve reduced on sale of Equity shares held by Subsidiary B -

Balance at the end of the year 1,693.95 1,693.95
Total Other Equity 8,535.59 9,308.75

Nature and purpose of other equity :-

(i) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the surplus in profit and loss account and appropriations
The Group recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) as part of retained earnings
with separate disclosure, which comprises of:
> actuarial gains and losses
> return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset); and
> any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(:

(iii) Reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory reserve,

(iv) General reserve
Amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per Law.
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Note 21: Interest income

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
Deposit with Banks 5.58 7.41
On loans given to others 229.27 244,01
234.85 251.41
Note 22: Other income
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Miscellaneous income 511 3.64
Impairment Reversed on Trade Receivables - 91.43
Proffessional Fees 0.21 -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Profit / (Loss) 0.39 0.56
Profit on Sale of Vechle - 37.15
Profit on sale of Asset 22.18 -
Income from sale of waste 9.02 -
36.91 132,78
Note 23: Finance costs
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest on Borrowings
Banks 380.88 435.39
Related Party - 3.54
Processing Charges 17.34 16.12
Others 183.40 291.25
590.62 746.30
Note 24: Net loss/(gain) on fair value changes
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Net loss / (gain) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss on
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
Net (gain)/loss on financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,333.42 33.58
Realised (gain)/ loss on equity instruments at FVTPL (158.81) 518.56
Unrealised loss/(Gain) on equity instruments at FVTPL (129.79) 4,240.18
1,044.81 4,792.32
MNote 25: Changes in inventories
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening balance
Finished goods 88.32 236.14
88.32 236.14
Closing balance
Finished goods 312.54 88.32
312.54 88.32
(224.22) 147.82
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Note 26: Employee benefit expense

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 294.48 282.37
Gratuity 14.38 14.02
Provident fund, ESIC and Gratuity 6.92 6.87
Staff welfare expenses 2.69 2.61
318.47 305.87
See Note 31 for Employee Benefit Obligations.
Note 27: Other expenses
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Demat Charges 2.29 2.56
Professional tax 0.05 0.05
Security Transaction tax 393 2.63
Advertisernent Expenses 3.93 3.15
Refreshment Exp. 0.13 0.33
Derivatives Expenses 15.90 13.32
Bank charges 0.45 12.23
Impairment on financial instruments 193.97 38.19
Exchange & Depository Expenses 7.54 6.53
EPF / ESIC Demand 0.03 0.50
Insurance Charges 8.25 6.25
Internet expenses 1.45 1.42
Miscellaenous expenses 26.71 13.55
TDS Demand - 0.28
Postage & Courier Charges - 0.02
Professional Fees 371.96 565.70
Rates and taxes 32.36 17.27
Payment to auditors 10.86 10.38
Rent 128.50 108.29
Director sitting fees 5.00 1.80
Repair & Maintainance - Computer 331 -
Buildings 2.26 2.53
Plant & Machinery 76.90 55.70
Others 8.84 4.02
Legal & Professional Fees 11.30 21.01
Travelling & Conveyance 25.42 25.06
Registration & Licenses 7.92 -
Loading & Unloading Charges 1.49 8.32
Property Tax : 0.06
Bad debts writeen off 4435 528.19
Brokerage & Commission Charges 0.94 1.72
Business Promotion 6.50 9.05
Communication Expenses 163 1.85
Printing & Stationery 031 0.23
CSR Expenses 7.10 '
Donation 5.46 1.00
Electricity Charges 6.05 1.44
Tender expenses 6.28 13.80
Power and Fuel 247.50 195.32
Vehicle expenes 5.95 499
Processing labour charges 185.28 153.47
Freight inward 22.46 1.48
Water Expenses 7.98 6.91
Share Expenses 4.72 2.44
Freight and forwarding expenses 527.24 600.16
Loss on sale of property plants and equipment 0.09 1.44
Other Exp. 20.92 35.79
2,051.50 2,490.53
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Note 27(a) :- Details of payments to auditors

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee 10.86 10.38
Audit expenses -
Out of pocket expenses - -
10.86 10.38

Note 28: Earnings per share

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Basic and Diluted EPS

Profit/(Loss) attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and
diluted EPS:

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
and diluted EPS

Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the company (Rs.)

Nominal value of shares (Rs.)

(773.15) 4,644.73
2,29,07,380 2,29,07,380
(3.38) 20.28
10.00 10.00
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Note 29: Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Disputed claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Appeals by the Holding Company *
Income tax matters

For AY 2013-14 which is contested by the company *

For AY 2014-15 which is contested by the company *

For AY 2015-16 which is contested by the company *
MVAT / CST matters

For Income Tax_(Penalty)

For AY 2013-14 which is contested by the company
For AY 2014-15 which is contested by the company
For AY 2015-16 which is contested by the company
For AY 2016-17 which is contested by the company
For AY 2017-18 which is contested by the company

Appeals by the Subsidiary Company *

For Income Tax (Penalty)
For FY 2015-16 which is contested by the company
For FY 2015-16 which is contested by the company

3.43
23.18
48.63
47.83

8.46

19.97
228.63
82.02

3.43
23.18
48.63
47.83

8.46

22.72
14.00

* Based on the appeal orders shown to us.
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Note 30: Capital Management

The group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The group has adequate cash and bank balances. The group monitors its capital by a careful scrutiny of the
cash and bank balances, and a regular assessment of any debt requirements. In the absence of any debt, the
maintenance of debt equity ratio etc. may not be of any relevance to the Company.

The group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt 3,542.35 5,798.44
Equity 10,826.32 11,599.48
Capital and net debt 14,368.67 17,397.92
Gearing ratio 0.25 0.33

Calculation of Net Debt is as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings
Non Current 2.232.73 3,340.13
Current 2,083.41 2,616.69
4,316.13 5,956.81
Cash and cash equivalents 673.78 58.37
Bank Balance other than above 100.00 100.00
773.78 158.37
Net Debt 3,542.35 5,798.44
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Note 31 : Employee Benefit obligations
(i} Post-employment obligations
a) Gratuity

The Company operate a defined benefit plan viz. namely gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee
who has completed at least 5 years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days {minimum) of the last drawn salary for

each year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

The following tables summarized the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

other comprehensive income, and the funded status and amount recognized in the balance sheet.

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Service cost 8.30 8.51
Net Interest Cost 6.09 5.51
Benefit Paid S -
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 14.38 14.02
Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening amount recognized in OCl outside profit and loss account -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from expeience adjustments 441 12.73
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in financial assumption 5.86 =
Closing of amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss 10.27 12.73
account
The amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet Statement

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of funded obligations 86.38 82.27
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net defined benefit liability / (assets) recognized in balance sheet 86.38 82.27
Change in Present Value of Obligations

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening of defined benefit obligations 82.27 80.98
Service cost 8.30 8.51
Interest Cost 6.09 5.51
Benefit Paid - "
Actuarial (gain) arising from experience adjustments - 9.32
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from expeience adjustments -4.41 -22.05
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in financial assumption -5.86 -
Closing of defined benefit obligation 86.38 82.27




The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Discount Rate
Rate of increase in Compensation levels
Rate of Return on Plan Assets

7.40% per annum
7.00% per annum

6.80% per annum
7.00% per annum

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

Sensitivity Analysis

Following table shows the sensitivity results on liability due to change in the assumptions:

March 31, 2023 Impact Impact (%)
(Absolute)
Base Liability 86.38
Increase Discount Rate by 1% 78.02 -8.36 -9.68%
Decrease Discount Rate by 1% 96.56 10.18 11.78%
Increase Salary Inflation by 1% 96.50 10.12 11.71%
Decrease Salary Inflation by 1% 77.92 -8.46 -9.79%
Increase in Withdrawal Assumption by 1% 86.56 0.18 0.20%
Decrease in Withdrawal Assumption by 1% 86.20 -0.18 -0.21%
March 31, 2022 Impact Impact (%)
(Absolute)
Base Liability 82.27
Increase Discount Rate by 1% 105.45 23.19 28.18%
Decrease Discount Rate by 1% 133.54 51.28 62.33%
Increase Salary Inflation by 1% 133.35 51.09 62.10%
Decrease Salary Inflation by 1% 105.37 23.10 28.08%
Increase in Withdrawal Assumption by 1% 118.03 35.77 43.48%
Decrease in Withdrawal Assumption by 1% 118.27 36.01 43.77%

Notes :

1. Liabilities are very sensitive to discount rate, salary escalation rate and withdrawal rate.
2. Liabilities are very less sensitive due to change in mortality assumptions. Hence, sensitivities due

to change in mortality are ignored,
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Note 32: Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24

Name of the related party

Relationship

Vibrant Global Trading Pvt. Ltd.
Vibrant Global Salt Pvt. Ltd.

(B) Key managerial personnel

Subsidiary

1 |Vaibhav Garg

2 |Vinod Garg

3 |Ajay Garg

4 |Anand Khetan (Independent Director-Resigned wef 2-11-2022) Key Managerial Personnel
5 |Khusboo Anish Pasari (Independent Director)

6 |Varun Vijaywargi ( Independent Director)

7 |Kaushik Agrawal ((Independent Director-appointed wef 2-11-2022)

1 |Vinod Vaibhav Garg HUF

2 |interfer - Vibrant Steel Pvt Ltd Enterprises On Which Key Management Personnel
3 |Ganpati Natural Salt LLP Have Significant Influence
4 |Fibmold Packaging Private Limited (wef 3-10-2022)
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The following details pertain to transactions carried out with the related parties in the ordinary
course of business and the balances outstanding at the year-end:

Nature of Transaction

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

LOAN ACCEPTED

Vaibhav Garg 4,095.00 3,903.00
Total 4,095.00 3,903.00
LOAN REPAID BACK

Vaibhav Garg 4,825.00 3,752.24
Total 4,825.00 3,752.24
NET IMPACT OF FAIR VALUE CHANGE

Interest free loan of Vaibhav Garg {Loss/(Profit)} 128.25 -1.39
Total 128.25 -1.39
RENT RECEIVED

FIBMOLD PACKAGING PVT.LTD 0.59

Interfer Vibrant Steel Pvt Ltd 0.30
Total 0.59 0.30
REMUNERATION PAID

Ajay Garg 13.20 13.72
Total 13.20 13.72

b. Balances as at the year end

Nature of Transaction

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

LOAN ACCEPTED
Vaibhav Garg

REMUNERATION
Ajay Garg

188.02

0.96

789.76

0.99
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Note 33: Segment Information

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director of the Company together constitute the Chief Operating Decision Makers
(“cODM”) which allocate resources to and assess the performance of the segments of the Company.

Business segments are primarily capital market, trading, manufacturing and Other businesses. Revenue and expenses directly
attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly attributable to each
reportable segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other
expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as others. Assets and liabilities that are
directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment, Tax assets and liabilites are
disclosed as Unallocated and all other assets and liabilities are disclosed as others.

(a) Information about reportable segment

1 Gross segment revenue from continuing operations March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Capital Market 4,912.63 12,213.97
(b) Trading 6,525.31 9,991.71
(c) Manufacturing 7,831.58 5,740.97
(d) Unallocated 461.78 419.27

Segment revenue from continuing operations 19,731.30 28,365.93

(e) Less: Inter segment revenue 5 2
Revenue as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 19,731.30 28,365.93

2 Segment results

(a) Capital Market 299.00 6,387.74
(b) Trading -636.38 -893.26
(c) Manufacturing 162.03 49.01
(d) Unallocated 327.80 313.46
(e)Interest -590.62 -746.30

Profit before tax -438.18 5,110.65

3 .Capital employed

(a) Capital Market 7,775.56 7,861.12
(b) Trading 1,326.28 1,912.29
(c) Manufacturing 1,687.62 1,612.96
(d) Unallocated 165.73 342.85

Total 10,955.19 11,729.22
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Note 34: Fair values

Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price),regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique.In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques.

Valuation framework

The Group's valuation framework includes:

{i) Benchmarking prices against observable market prices or other independent sources.

(i) Development and validation of fair valuation models using model logic, inputs, outputs and adjustments.

These valuation models are subject to a process of due diligence and validation before they become operational and are continuously calibrated.
These models are subject to approvals by various functions including risk, treasury and finance functions. Finance function is responsible for
establishing procedures, governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

Valuation methodologies adopted

1. The Group has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, bank balances,other than cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets , trade payables and other financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value. Further, for financial assets, the Group has taken into consideration the allowances for expected credit losses and adjusted

the carrying values where applicable.

2. The fair values of the quoted investments/ units of mutual fund schemes are based on market price/ net asset value at the reporting date.

3, The fair values for loans given are calculated based on discounted cash flows using current lending rates and individual credit worthiness of the
counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such
instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy,

4. Fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow method using the current borrowing rates. Fair
value of such instruments are not materially different from their carrying values, accordingly non-current borrowings are classified as level 2 fair
values in the fair value hierarchy. The own non-performarice risk as at March 31, 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses guoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on Group specific estimates.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories including the quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as at
March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars Carrying Value Notes | Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Loan
Non-current 488.26 6 - - 488.26
Current 1,250.63 6 - - 1,250.63
Other financial assets
Non-current 58.01 8 58.01
Current 72.79 72.79
Trade Receivables 1,840.97 5 1,840.97
Fair value through profit and loss
Investment in equity instruments of athers (unquoted) 7 - - -
Investment in prefarence instruments of others {unquoted) 155.00 7 - 155.00
\nvestment in equity Instruments {quoted) 7,891.67 7 7,891.67 z 5
444,59 44459 %

|\nvestment in another instruments |quated)




Financial Liabilities

Amortised cost

Borrowings
Non-current
Current
Trade payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Non-current
Current

2,232.73 15
2,083.41 15
1,839.46 14

28.06

16

2,232.73
2,083.41

1,839.46

28.06

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the previous year.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories including the quantitative disclosures of fair value measure

March 31, 2022 is as follows:

ment hierarchy as at

Particulars Carrying Value Notes Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Loan
Non-current 489.07 b - - 489,07
Current 994.74 6 - - 994,74
Other financial assets
Non-current 58.01 8 58.01
Current 18.23 8 18.23
Trade Receivables 4,435.33 5 4,435.33
Fair value through profit and loss
Investment in equity instruments of others (unquoted) 0.01 7 - 0.01 -
Investment in preference instruments of others (unguoted) 155.00 7 - 155.00
Investment in equity instruments (quoted) 9,061.41 7 9,061.41 - -
Investment in another instruments (quated) 374.08 374.08 =
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings
Non-current 3,340.13 15 - 3,340.13 -
Current 2,616.69 15 - 2,616.69 -
Trade payables 2,237.52 14 2,237.52
Other Financial Liabilities
Non-current - =
Current 29.39 16 29.39

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the previous year.




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Note 35: Financial Risk Management

Risk Management

The group’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other paya
liabilities is to finance and support the group’s op:

Systematicalyy Important Non Deposit taking group
operating environment. The principal objective in group ‘s risk managem

group is subject to and to follow policies and procedures to address such risks.

The group is exposed to market risk , credit risk and liquidity risk. The group's senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,

a) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or th
factor. Such changes in the values of financial instrumen
market changes. The objective of market risk management
reduce its exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instrument

Price risk

The group's securities investments carry a risk of cha
securities. To manage its price risk arising from investm
sectors it has invested in, performance of the investee companies, measures mar

continuous basis.

Sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2023

which are summarised below,

e future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
ts may result from changesin the interest rate, stock prices, liquidity, and other
is to avoid excessive exposure of group's earnings and equity to loss and
s. The group is exposed to Price risk under market risk as follows:

nge in prices arising from uncertainties about future values of the invested
ents in these securities, through diversification by periodically monitoring the
k- to- market gains/losses and reviews the same on a

bles. The main purpose of these financial
erations. The group’s principal financial assets include investments, cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables that are derived directly from its operations. As a Non Banking Financial group categorised as
" the group is exposed to various risks that are related to Investment business and
ent processes is to measure and monitor the various risks that

Particulars At cost Fair Sensitivity to fair value
valua 1% increase | 1% decrease

Investment in Quoted Equity Share 3847.54 7891.67 78.92 -78.92

Investment in Unguoted Alternate Inv 300.00 44459 4.45 -4.45

The impact of increases/ decreases of the BSE/ N
depicted in above table. The analysis is based on the assumption
variables held constant, and that all the group's investments having price risk mow

b)Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may n
group periodically assesses financial reliability of c
current economic trends, and analysis of historica
reviewed on the basis of such information.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,
plan with the group. Where loans or receivables have been written
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made,

cash and cash equivalents: Balances with banks are subject t

ustomers and ot
| bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits

off, the group con

SE index on the group's equity shares and gain/ loss for the period would
that the index has increased by 1% or decreased by 1% with all other
ed in line with the index.

ot be able to settle their obligation as agreed. To manage this, the
her counter parties, taking into account the financial condition,
are periodically

such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment
tinues to engage in enforcement activity to
these are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss.

o low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to the banks.

Loans: The group has given loans to certain unrelated parties. However there is no counter party risk.



Trade and other receivables:

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provisions) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:

Less than 6 6 months - 1

Period 1-2 years 2-3 years O Total
months year years

As at March 31, 2023 1459.91 51.46 349.55 1.90 1047.99 2910.82

As at March 31, 2022 3340.76 801.56 69.12 811.44 288.33 5311.21

The following table summarizes the ch

March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
Opening balance 875.87 B837.67
Provided during the year 193.98 38.19
Amounts written off 0.00 0.00
Reversals of provisions 0.00 0.00
Closing balance 1069.85 875.87

anges in the Provisions made for the receivables:

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.

c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity may encounter in the form of difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The entity’s approach towards managing liguidity is to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the entity’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires sufficient cash and marketable securities and availability of funds throug

committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions.

The group takes a view of maintaining liguidity with m
term liquid assets in the form of bank deposits and liqul

a view to meet its short term obligations associated with its financial liabilities,

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financi

al liabilities at the reporting date

h adeguate

inimal risks while making investments. The group invests its surplus funds in short
d mutual funds. The group menitors its cash and bank balances periadically with

On demand Lessthan3 |3 to 12 months| 1tob5 years > 5 years Total
months
March 31, 2023
Borrowings
From Banks 23 1.56 1277.75 682.89 804.92 2794.85
From Financial Institution 776.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 776.36
From Directors 188.02 188.02
From Others 556.90 556.90
Trade payables 1441.40 398.06 0.00 1839.46
Other financial liabilities 23.02 5.04 0.00 28.06
March 31, 2022
Borrowings
From Banks 489,87 0.00 1616.65 1042.50 15.77 3164.80
From Financial Institution 188.17 188.17
From Directors 20.00 769.76 789.76
From Others 296.00 1518.08 1814.08
Trade payables 990.24 1247.28 0.00 2237.51
Other financial liabilities 29.39 7.11 0.00 0.00

36.ﬂ




Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Note 36:-Revenue from contract with customers

36.1 Disaggregated Revenue information

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Type of income

Interest Income 234.85 251.41
Rental Income 1.79 1.50
Dividend Income 59.71 85.97
Sale of products 18,949.56 23,090.99
Derivatives Income -596.33 -

Total revenue from contracts with customers 18,649.58 23,429.88

Geographical markets
India 18,649.58 23,425.88

QOutside India - -

18,649.58 23,429.88

36.2 Contract balances

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables 1,840.97 4,435.33
Contract Assets - -

Contract Liabilities




Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 :

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements to Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31st March 2023 :

Net assets, i.e., total assets
minus

Share of profit or
loss including Other

Name of the Entity Total Liabilities Comprehensive Income
As % of As % of
consolidated consolidated

net assets Amount net assets Amount
Parent:
Vibrant Global Capital limited 72.49 7,941.28 26.00 -201.23
Subsidiaries :
Vibrant Global Trading Pvt. Ltd. 12.11 1,326.28 86.32 -668.11
Vibrant Global Salt Pvt. Ltd 15.40 1,687.62 -12.31 95.31

100.00 10,955.18 100.00 -774.02

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements to Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31st March 2022 :

Name of the Entity Net assets, i.e., total assets Share of profit or
As % of As % of
consolidated consolidated
net assets Amount net assets Amount

Parent:
Vibrant Global Capital limited 69.94 8,203.97 99.30 4,646.93
Subsidiaries :
Vibrant Global Trading Pvt. Ltd. 16.30 1,912.29 -6.27 -293.29
Vibrant Global Salt Pvt. Ltd 13.75 1,612.96 6.97 326.00

100.00 11,729.22 100.00 4,679.64




Vibrant Global Capital Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 - Advance for acquisition of property
Long term loans and advances includes Rs. 58 Lakhs being part payment made for purchase of property. As reported in earlier
years, the company has filed a suit in the High Court of Judicature at Mumbai for specific performance of this agreement for

purchase.

Note 39 - Corporate Social Responsibilities

The Company is required to spend Rs. 7.10 /- lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23 towards Corporate Social Responsibility in accordance with the provision of Section 135
of Companies Act, 2013
"The company covered under section 135 of the companies act, the following are disclosed with regard to CSR activities: -

(a) amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 7.10
(b) amount of expenditure incurred, 7.10
(c) shortfall at the end of the year, NIL
(d) total of previous years shortfall, NIL
(e) reason for shortfall, NA
(f) nature of CSR activities, Various, As prescribed

(g) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard,

(h) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the
movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately NA

(j) Contribution of Rs. 7.10/- lakhs made to Uma Garg Foundation which is related party to Vibarant Global Capital Ltd.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Agrawal & Kedia Vibrant Global Capital Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 100114W
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